# REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BROOK PARK, OHIO TO BE HELD ON TUESDAY, OCTOBER 18, 2022 7:30 P.M.

- A. ROLL CALL OF MEMBERS
- **B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE**
- C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF PRECEDING MEETINGS:
  - 1. CAUCUS PRIOR TO MEETING MINUTES HELD ON AUGUST 23, 2022.
  - 2. REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES HELD ON AUGUST 23, 2022.
- D. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES:

Aviation & Environmental Committee - Chairman, Poindexter
Finance Committee - Chairman, Scott
Legislative Committee - Chairman, Coyne
Parks & Recreation Committee - Chairman, Mencini
Planning Committee - Chairman, Troyer
Safety Committee - Chairman, Roberts
Service Committee - Chairman, Poindexter
Board of Zoning Appeals - Chairman, Salvatore

E. REPORTS OF SPECIAL COMMITTEES:

Southwest General Health Center Trustee, Mencini
Berea Board of Education Representative, Coyne
Technology & Innovation Council Representative, Poindexter

- F. REPORTS OF BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS:
- G. INTRODUCTION OF RESOLUTIONS OF COMMENDATION:
- H. REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR:
- I. REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM DEPARTMENTS, COMMISSIONS, AND OTHER PUBLIC OFFICIALS:
- J. OTHER COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS, AND VERBAL APPROVAL: (INTRODUCTION OF NEW LEGISLATION):
- K. <u>MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS, APPOINTMENTS, CONFIRMATIONS:</u>

### L. REMARKS FROM THE AUDIENCE ON ANY SUBJECT MATTER:

### M. ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS FIRST READING:

- 1. ORD. NO. 11288-2022
  AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH THE CUYAHOGA COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. Introduced by Mayor Orcutt.
- ORD. NO. 11289-2022
   AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH THE CUYAHOGA COUNTY LIBRARY, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. Introduced by Mayor Orcutt.
- 3. ORD. NO. 11287-2022
  AN ORDINANCE ENACTING CHAPTER 1126 OF THE BROOK PARK
  CODIFIED ORDINANCES ENTITLED 'MEDICAL MARIJUANA
  DISPENSARIES', AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. Introduced by
  Councilman Troyer, Poindexter, Roberts, Mencini.
- 4. ORD. NO. 11286-2022
  AN ORDINANCE ENACTING CHAPTER 720 OF THE BROOK PARK CODIFIED ORDINANCES ENTITLED 'MEDICAL MARIJUANA OPERATIONS', AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. Introduced by Councilman Troyer, Poindexter, Roberts, Mencini.
- 5. RES. NO. 26-2022
  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO AN ALL-HAZARDS MITIGATION PLAN WITH CUYAHOGA COUNTY, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. Introduced by Mayor Orcutt.
- 6. RES. NO. 28-2022
  A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PROPOSED LOT CONSOLIDATION
  OF PPN 344-14-042 AND PPN 344-15-177 TO CREATE NEW PARCEL 'AAl' AT 14571 SNOW ROAD AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY
- 7. RES. NO. 29-2022
  A RESOLUTION GRANTING APPROVAL FOR A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT AND SITE PLAN APPROVAL TO OPERATE A FULL-SERVICE CAR WASH FACILITY AT 14831 SNOW ROAD LOCATED IN THE U-3A ZONE, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

- N. SECOND READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS:
- O. THIRD READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS:
- P. ADJOURNMENT:

## REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BROOK PARK, OHIO TO BE HELD ON TUESDAY, OCTOBER 18, 2022

The meeting was called to order by Council President Vecchio at 7:43 p.m., the clerk called the roll and the following Members of Council answered:

### MENCINI, ROBERTS, POINDEXTER, SALVATORE, TROYER, COYNE, SCOTT

Also in attendance were Mayor Orcutt, Law Director Horvath, Safety Director Sensel, Recreation Director Gonzales, Service Director Beyer and Engineer Piatak.

### **APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF PRECEDING MEETINGS:**

- 1. Caucus Prior to meeting minutes held on August 23, 2022.
- 2. Regular Council meeting minutes held on August 23, 2022.

**Mass motion** by Mencini, supported by Madam Coyne, to approve both sets of minutes as written.

ROLL CALL: AYES: Mencini, Coyne, Scott, Salvatore, Poindexter, Roberts

**NAYS:** Troyer.

#### **REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES:**

<u>Aviation & Environmental Committee - Chairman, Poindexter</u>

Mr. Poindexter stated there is no legislation, therefore, no report.

Finance Committee - Chairman, Scott

Mr. Scott reported Finance committee has nothing on tonight's agenda. The Board of Control met earlier with ten (10) items on the agenda; three largest being is an increase for three police officer uniforms at \$1,800.00 each = \$5,400.00; Jerseys and Basketballs - \$7,039.85 and 2023 Solid Waste mailing - \$6,735.00.

### Legislative Committee - Chairwoman, Coyne

Madam Coyne reported there are two pieces of legislation on tonight's agenda for medical marijuana.

### Parks & Recreation Committee - Chairman, Mencini

Mr. Mencini reported last weekend for Flag Titans football teams. On Wednesdays Pickle ball program is held from 9:00 a.m. to 11:00 a.m. November 25th will be the holiday parade at 6:00 p.m., lighting ceremony to follow. November 26th Santa Tours the city and on Sunday, November 27th the pancake breakfast.

### Planning Committee - Chairman, Troyer

Mr. Troyer reported there are two items on agenda. Just a reminder October is Breast Cancer Awareness month, get your checkups.

### Safety Committee - Chairman, Roberts

Mr. Roberts stated no report.

### Service Committee - Chairman, Poindexter

Mr. Poindexter stated no items in committee, therefore, no report.

### Board of Zoning Appeals - Chairman, Salvatore

Mr. Salvatore stated no report.

### **REPORTS OF SPECIAL COMMITTEES:**

Southwest General Health Center Trustee, Mencini

Mr. Mencini with the Cleveland clinic coming to the former Kmart location at the corner of Bagley and Engle Roads; Southwest was asked to join and chose not to. Southwest is a high-function hospital with low costs to the patients. Southwest has locations in many communities, Medina, Strongsville, Olmsted Falls and plans for a location in North Royalton. In-patient volumes are down and out-patient volumes are up which is occurring with many hospitals. The new Olmsted Falls location is picking up volume. Berea Board of Education Representative, Coyne

Madam Coyne reported there was a meeting last night and the district signed a contract with Southwest General for the display of signage at the district's sports facility; Southwest is responsible for the upkeep and signage. Something new with Camp Mi-Bro-Be is students will have a longer weekend without missing classes. Lastly, the district is recognizing Girls Varsity Wrestling as a sport.

Technology & Innovation Council Representative, Poindexter

Mr. Poindexter reported the committee met on October 5th and will be presenting to Council new website RFP's sometime in November. Resumes are being received showing interest to join the committee with the Mayor making the call to fill the vacancy. With the EV (electronic vehicles) charging system installations the city is assured on receiving one and installation starts in October, 2022 and continues into 2023.

### **REPORTS OF BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS:**

### **INTRODUCTION OF RESOLUTIONS OF COMMENDATION:**

### REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR:

Mayor Orcutt extended condolences to Finance Director Cingle and family on the passing of his father. This evening legislation will be introduced relating to the shortage of concrete. Super 8 motel update the fire and police departments have been training at the vacant hotel and demolition is scheduled for October 24th. On October 13th, the city applied for funds from the American Rescue Act from Cuyahoga County in the amount of \$1.5 million-dollars and want to thank Council with all their help with that. If legislation is passed this evening for the library resurfacing project that work will begin on October 24th, traffic will be rerouted.

### **Questions:**

Mr. Mencini asked if there are any plans to meet about roads?

Mayor Orcutt responded yes, would like to sit with Council at city hall to have those discussions. Both the service director and engineer have come up with new ideas for an alternative roads program from past years, due to the shortage of concrete. Something creative to find out what the best streets can be done with asphalt that have low sub-

Questions to the Mayor: cont.

base damage; important to have those discussions in order to get those roads in the budget.

Mr. Mencini continued would like to meet regarding overnight parking issues, speeding, dog barking and livestream complaints being received.

Mayor Orcutt responded with the overnight parking issues send a work order to my administrative assistant with the location so special attention can be given to the area. Speeding is a big issue and don't know why it's picked up the last few years; the electronic trailer is being placed throughout the city to create a safer city for the residents.

Mr. Mencini stated responses are being received from the departments.

Mayor Orcutt continued Council is the liaison between the residents and administrative. Work orders are being turned in with responses being received; seems the system is working.

Mr. Troyer mentioned last week would like to meet with the safety director on overnight parking problem; seems like dispatch is giving permission to park overnight.

Mayor Orcutt responded first I'm hearing of this and that can be looked into. Reiterated if there is an area send the work order for special attention to be given.

Mr. Troyer asked for any updates on the roof and walls?

Mayor Orcutt responded legislation will be forthcoming to go out to bid with the only payment on the city is for advertising. On the finance portion there is \$1.8 million-dollars in the budget and have found out that Nopec will lend the city \$1 million-dollars with three-percent (3%) interest for ten (10) years. Other funds needed will come from possible bonding or possibly leftover monies

from other funds.

Mr. Roberts stated there were issues with overnight parking, work order was sent and with a response the next morning at 8:00 a.m., the matter was resolved.

Mr. Poindexter stated at the last meeting Brewer-Garrett provided conflicting reports from Construction Resources on the roof study; any update on when the meeting of both parties will occur?

Mayor Orcutt responded research done by the city has concluded the facts that a study paid for on the existing roof that is polyurethane foam and was told from an

### Questions to the Mayor: cont.

inspector that this is not for that region. Checked out that this roof material is used throughout the region and was conflicting with Construction Resources report. What ended up happening is some saw-cuts were too large and weren't up compromising those areas with water. There is a \$5 million-dollar estimate for a brand new roof to be put on. The other thing found is Brewer-Garrett does have a warranty with West Roofing who have made repairs and thanked both the recreation and service directors for working with this company, still some areas that need corrections. Would like to take you on the roof as well as the service and recreation directors on the roof to show what is occurring. Candidly speaking, the city paid to have the roof inspected and opened those big areas that weren't closed correctly and will work with Construction Resources to make that right.

Mr. Poindexter continued don't understand the conflicting reports of one company saying it's good and the other company saying not good, that are both experts. Meeting should take place with your administration.

Mayor Orcutt responded if you want that, I can do that.

Mayor Orcutt commented both companies are trying to protect their reputation.

Mr. Poindexter stated a roof done five years ago but still has concerns with one company saying it's good and other company saying no good.

Mayor Orcutt stated there are some areas that are pooling and the city has been assured will be taken out and repaired. Doing a walk-through with the contractor there were other things pointed out that the city wasn't aware of. West Roofing must be notified anytime the roof is opened up; if not done that compromises the warrant and will not walk away.

Mr. Troyer stated would like to be on the tour of the roof, many leaks in both the chambers and offices have been there.

Mr. Vecchio expressed condolences to Finance Director Cingle's family on the passing of his father and stated there will be no report from the finance director.

### REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM DEPARTMENTS, COMMISSIONS, AND OTHER PUBLIC OFFICIALS:

Law Director Horvath

Mrs. Horvath expressed condolences to Mr. Cingle's family and stated no report. <u>Safety Director Sensel</u>

Mr. Sensel reported the fire department for the last two days has been training at the Super 8 hotel as well as the Cuyahoga County Sherriff Swat Team having training tomorrow using explosive breaching tools making loud noises.

### Reports and communication from departments, commissions and other public officials: cont.

Recreation Director Gonzales

Mr. Gonzales stated the Boo Park fall festival was a huge success with 1,500 to 2,000 participants, thanked everyone involved. Basketball and cheerleading registrations will continue until October 31st. As mentioned there are many holiday events coming up in November, will have more details to follow.

Service Director Beyer

Mr. Beyer reported a successful Shred-It day event with four (4) tons of documents shredded, thanked the service team and residents. With last week's bulk 69 tons were picked up. The service yard will close on November 18th for drop off of yard waste and rubbish during the week. The service yard will be open on Saturdays from 10:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. Leaf collection will continue and one tour of the city has been completed and reminded residents not to park in front of leaf piles, telephone poles or signs. If there are any sticks, stones or dog wastes in the leaf piles there will be no pickup. Engineer Piatak

Mr. Piatak reported the CSX ditch-cleaning project on Michael and Westbrook all the paperwork has been submitted to the railroad, waiting response. With the Delores Blvd. road project concrete work has been completed with landscaping wrapping up this afternoon. With the Hio Road project concrete was poured on the northbound lanes yesterday and following up with driveway aprons this week. As mentioned with the Super 8 hotel anticipating moving forward on that project.

### OTHER COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS, AND VERBAL APPROVAL: (INTRODUCTION OF NEW LEGISLATION):

New <u>legislation</u>:

An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to enter into a contract for the sale of Permanent Parcel No. 341-23-007 and declaring an emergency. Introduced by Mayor Orcutt. Assigned to Finance committee.

An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to enter into a contract for concrete with Westview Concrete Corporation and declaring an emergency. Introduced by Mayor Orcutt. Assigned to service committee.

Motion by Mr. Troyer, supported by Mr. Roberts, to move to letter M, first reading. ROLL CALL: AYES: Troyer, Roberts, Mencini, Poindexter, Salvatore, Coyne, Scott NAYS: Unanimous.

Mr. Vecchio stated that will appear under M-10 as Ordinance No. 11292-2022.

An Ordinance repealing Chapter 556 of the Brook Park Codified Ordinances entitled 'Prohibition of Cultivation, Processing or Retail Dispensaries of Medical Marijuana' and declaring an emergency. Introduced by Councilmembers, Troyer, Poindexter, Mencini and Roberts. Assigned legislative committee.

Motion by Mr. Troyer, supported by Mr. Roberts to move to letter M, first reading.

Introduction of new legislation: cont.

ROLL CALL: AYES: Troyer, Roberts, Mencini, Poindexter

NAYS: Salvatore, Coyne, Scott.

Mr. Vecchio stated this will appear under letter M-11 as Ordinance No. 11293-2022.

#### MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS, APPOINTMENTS, CONFIRMATIONS:

### REMARKS FROM THE AUDIENCE ON ANY SUBJECT MATTER:

Louis Modic

14399 Fayette Blvd.

Mr. Modic stated for the record, at the October 4th meeting been told I was condemning Council and want to make it clear that I was commending Council. Also, expressed concerns with Council doing their job on redistricting of the city.

**Motion** by Mr. Troyer, supported by Mr. Poindexter, to respond to audience. **ROLL CALL: AYES:** Troyer, Poindexter, Salvatore, Roberts, Mencini, Coyne **NAYS:** Scott.

Mr. Troyer clarified Council is a legislative body and any connection with the city is done legislatively, the redistricting is not done until legislation is passed and signed by the Mayor and Council President.

Madam Coyne stated with medical marijuana this should have been done a long time ago and want this for the city but want it done correctly and best way for the city. The Mayor vetoed medical marijuana legislation for a reason and when looking at redistricting the proposed area was not a good one and could cause lawsuits for the city for being in an industrial area on Brookpark Road.

**Motion** by Mr. Troyer, supported by Mr. Poindexter, to go back to regular order of business.

**ROLL CALL: AYES:** Troyer, Poindexter, Salvatore, Roberts, Mencini, Scott, Coyne **NAYS:** Unanimous.

Motion by Mr. Troyer, supported by Mr. Roberts, for a five-minute recess.

ROLL CALL: AYES: Troyer, Roberts, Mencini, Poindexter, Salvatore, Coyne, Scott NAYS: Unanimous.

**Motion** by Mr. Mencini, supported by Mr. Troyer, to go back to the regular order of business.

**ROLL CALL: AYES:** Mencini, Troyer, Coyne, Scott, Roberts, Poindexter, Salvatore **NAYS:** Unanimous.

### **ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS FIRST READING:**

1. ORDINANCE NO. 11288-2022
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A
LEASE AGREEMENT WITH THE CUYAHOGA COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY AND
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. Introduced by Mayor Orcutt.

Motion by Mr. Poindexter, supported by Mr. Mencini, to suspend.

ROLL CALL: AYES: Poindexter, Mencini, Roberts, Salvatore, Troyer, Scott

NAYS: Coyne.

Motion by Mr. Poindexter, supported by Mr. Mencini, to adopt.

Madam Coyne stated this for me is the residents' deserve the best library and this lease leads to continual insufficient revenue for the library to finance the city's parking lot. The City of Middleburg Hts. built a new library and reused the former building for a police station. Think this could be a short-term lease and possibly find a new location on the city campus. With Brook Park Memorial propose having an adaptive use don't want another vacant building and think this should be considered before tearing down the former school.

Mr. Poindexter stated 'Point of Clarification' this legislation is for the parking lot; not the lease agreement with the library.

Madam Coyne reiterated perhaps lessening the lease.

Mr. Poindexter stated is the city lessens the lease the library may explore other options this is in the city's best interest for residents to have a library to use for 25 years.

Mayor Orcutt stated this agreement is no different than past agreements between the city and the library; and an important asset. When looking at Middleburg Hts. you have to look into the assessments with the property tax and revenue stream versus Brook Park.

Madam Coyne reiterated that Middleburg Hts. has an adaptive reuse of the old library to a police station. Propose engaging in a professional planner for adaptive use of Brook Park Memorial.

The clerk called the roll on the **motion** by Mr. Mencini, supported by Mr. Poindexter.

ROLL CALL: AYES: Mencini, Poindexter, Roberts, Salvatore, Troyer, Scott

NAYS: Coyne.

### First Reading of Ordinances and Resolutions: cont.

2. ORDINANCE NO. 11289-2022
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH THE CUYAHOGA COUNTY LIBRARY AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. Introduced by Mayor Orcutt.

Motion by Mr. Mencini, supported by Mr. Poindexter, to suspend.

ROLL CALL: AYES: Mencini, Poindexter, Roberts, Salvatore, Troyer, Scott NAYS: Coyne.

Motion by Mr. Poindexter, supported by Mr. Roberts, to adopt.

Mr. Troyer stated for this but have reservations wish could be a better deal. The fact of the matter is the library was revamped a few years ago and is no longer state-of-the-art anymore. Looking at the engineer's data sheet this agreement is less than the engineer's estimate making this a good deal.

**ROLL CALL: AYES:** Poindexter, Roberts, Mencini, Salvatore, Troyer, Scott. **NAYS:** Coyne.

3. ORDINANCE NO. 11287-2022
AN ORDINANCE ENACTING CHAPTER 1128 OF THE BROOK PARK CODIFIED ORDINANCES ENTITLED 'MEDICAL MARIJUANA DISPENSARIES' AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. Introduced by Councilmembers Troyer, Poindexter, Roberts and Mencini.

Mr. Vecchio stated Ordinance No. 11287-2022, has had its first reading.

4. ORDINANCE NO. 11286-2022
AN ORDINANCE ENACTING CHAPTER 720 OF THE BROOK PARK CODIFIED ORDINANCES ENTITLED 'MEDICAL MARIJUANA OPERATIONS' AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. Introduced by Councilmembers Troyer, Poindexter, Roberts and Mencini.

**Motion** by Mr. Poindexter, supported by Mr. Troyer, to amend 720.08 - Fees on page 8 by inserting 'Building Department will collect all the fees'.

**ROLL CALL: AYES:** Poindexter, Troyer, Scott, Mencini, Roberts, Salvatore **NAYS:** Coyne.

Mr. Vecchio stated Ordinance No. 11286-2022, has had its first reading.

### **Ordinances and Resolutions: (First Reading):**

5. <u>RESOLUTION NO. 26-2022</u>

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO AN ALL-HAZARDS MITIGATION PLAN WITH CUYAHOGA COUNTY AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. Introduced by Mayor Orcutt.

Motion by Mr. Scott, supported by Mr. Roberts, to suspend.

**ROLL CALL: AYES:** Scott, Roberts, Mencini, Poindexter, Salvatore, Troyer, Coyne **Motion** by Mr. Mencini, supported by Mr. Roberts, to adopt.

**ROLL CALL: AYES:** Mencini, Roberts, Poindexter, Salvatore, Troyer, Coyne, Scott **NAYS:** Unanimous. Resolution No. 26-2022, has passed under suspension of the rules. Adopted.

### 6. <u>RESOLUTION NO. 28-2022</u>

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PROPOSED LOT CONSOLIDATION OF PPN. 344-14-042 AND PPN. 344-15-177 TO CREATE NEW PARCEL 'A-1 A' AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. Introduced by Council as a Whole.

**Motion** by Mr. Poindexter, supported by Mr. Roberts, to suspend.

**ROLL CALL: AYES:** Poindexter, Roberts, Mencini, Salvatore, Troyer, Coyne, Scott **NAYS:** Unanimous.

**Motion** by Mr. Mencini, supported by Mr. Poindexter, to adopt.

**ROLL CALL: AYES:** Mencini, Poindexter, Roberts, Salvatore, Troyer, Coyne, Scott **NAYS:** Unanimous. Resolution No. 28-2022, has passed under suspension of the rules. Adopted.

### 7. RESOLUTION NO. 29-2022

A RESOLUTION GRANTING APPROVAL FOR A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT AND SITE PLAN APPROVAL TO OPERATE A FULL-SERVICE CAR WASH FACILITY AT 14831 SNOW ROAD, LOCATED IN THE U-3A ZONE AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. Introduced by Council as a Whole.

Motion by Mr. Troyer, supported by Mr. Roberts, to suspend.

**ROLL CALL: AYES:** Troyer, Roberts, Mencini, Poindexter, Salvatore, Coyne, Scott NAYS: Unanimous.

Motion by Mr. Mencini, supported by Mr. Poindexter, to adopt.

**ROLL CALL: AYES:** Mencini, Poindexter, Roberts, Salvatore, Troyer, Coyne, Scott **NAYS:** Unanimous. Resolution No. 29-2022, has passed under suspension of the rules. Adopted.

### Ordinances and Resolution: First Reading: cont.

8. ORDINANCE NO. 11290-2022

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH HALL PUBLIC SAFETY UPFITTERS FOR THE PURCHASE OF FOUR POLICE VEHICLE LIGHTS AND SAFETY EQUIPMENT CHANGE-OUT AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. Introduced by Mayor Orcutt.

Motion by Mr. Troyer, supported by Madam Coyne, to suspend.

**ROLL CALL: AYES:** Troyer, Coyne, Scott, Mencini, Roberts, Poindexter, Salvatore **NAYS:** Unanimous.

Motion by Mr. Troyer, supported by Mr. Roberts, to adopt.

ROLL CALL: AYES: Troyer, Roberts, Mencini, Salvatore, Coyne, Scott.

**NAYS:** Unanimous. Ordinance No. 11290-2022, has passed under suspension of the rules. Adopted.

### 9. ORDINANCE NO. 11291-2022,

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH HALL PUBLIC SAFETY UPFITTERS FOR THE PURCHASE OF FOUR POLICE VEHICLES AND SAFETY EQUIPMENT CHANGE-OUT AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. Introduced by Mayor Orcutt.

Motion by Mr. Mencini, supported by Madam Coyne, to suspend.

**ROLL CALL: AYES:** Mencini, Coyne, Scott, Troyer, Salvatore, Poindexter, Roberts **NAYS:** Unanimous.

Motion by Mr. Troyer, supported by Madam Coyne, to adopt.

ROLL CALL: AYES: Troyer, Coyne, Scott, Mencini, Roberts, Poindexter, Salvatore NAYS: Unanimous. Ordinance No. 11291-2022, has passed under suspension of the rules. Adopted.

### 10. ORDINANCE NO. 11292-2022

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT FOR CONCRETE WITH WESTVIEW CONCRETE CORPORATION AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. Introduced by Mayor Orcutt.

Read in its entirety since no properly posted.

Motion by Mr. Mencini, supported by Madam Coyne, to suspend.

**ROLL CALL: AYES:** Mencini, Coyne, Scott, Troyer, Salvatore, Poindexter, Roberts **NAYS:** Unanimous.

Mr. Mencini commented likes Section 2 with all the funds listed.

Motion by Mr. Roberts, supported by Mr. Poindexter, to adopt.

ROLL CALL: AYES: Roberts, Poindexter, Mencini, Scott, Coyne, Troyer, Salvatore NAYS: Unanimous. Ordinance No. 11292-2022, has passed under suspension of the rules. Adopted.

### Ordinances and Resolutions: First Reading: cont.

11. ORDINANCE NO. 11293-2022

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING CHAPTER 556 OF THE BROOK PARK CODIFIED ORDINANCES ENTITLED 'PROHIBITION OF CULTIVATION, PROCESSING OR RETAIL DISPENSARIES OF MEDICAL MARIJUANA' AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. Introduced by Councilmembers Troyer, Poindexter, Mencini and Roberts.

Read in its entirety.

Mr. Vecchio stated Ordinance No. 11293-2022, has had its first reading.

### **SECOND READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS:**

### THIRD READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS:

There being no further business to come before this meeting a **motion** by Mr. Mencini, supported by Madam Coyne, to adjourn.

ROLL CALL: AYES: Mencini, Coyne, Scott, Troyer, Salvatore, Poindexter, Roberts

NAYS: Unanimous.

Council President Vecchio declared this meeting adjourned at 8:59 p.m.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED

Clerk of/Council

APPROVED\_\_11/15/2022

THESE MEETING MINUTES APPROVED BY BROOK PARK CITY COUNCIL ARE A SYNOPSIS, NOT TRANSCRIBED IN THEIR ENTIRETY, ALTHOUGH ACCURATE.